

Yvonne Ford, Untitled

Artwork from Reflections Art in Health, a user-led charity that promotes positive mental health through the creative arts

Risk minimisation measures in patients treated with Spravato^{®*} (esketamine) nasal spray

۲

PRESCRIBER BOOKLET

Version 1 CP-142831/ESK/0320/006 Date of preparation: December 2020





Contents

Introduction	3
What is Spravato®?	3
How does Spravato® work?	4
How is Spravato® administered?	5
Healthcare facility requirements for Spravato® administration	6
Conditions that require specific consideration	6
Monitoring patients before and after Spravato® administration	6
Readiness-to-leave	7
Transient dissociative states and perception disorders	11
What are transient dissociative states and perception disorders (dissociation)?	11
What is the evidence of dissociation with Spravato®?	12
Who is at risk of dissociation?	14
How to assess and manage dissociation	15
Disturbances in consciousness (sedation)	19
What is the evidence of disturbances in consciousness with Spravato®?	19
What is the evidence of sedation with Spravato®?	20
Who is at risk of sedation?	21
How to assess and manage sedation	22
Blood pressure increased	25
What is the evidence of increased blood pressure with Spravato®?	25
Who is at risk of increased blood pressure?	27
How to assess and monitor for increased blood pressure	28
Were other cardiovascular events observed with Spravato®?	29
Drug abuse	33
What is the evidence of drug abuse with Spravato®?	33
How to minimise the risk of drug abuse	33
Who is at risk of drug abuse?	34
How to report adverse events	37
Risk minimisation timeline	38
References	40



Introduction

Please read the summary of product characteristics (SmPC) carefully before prescribing Spravato® (esketamine nasal spray).

•

This guide informs healthcare professionals about the four identified risks that may occur following Spravato® treatment: transient dissociative states and perception disorders (dissociation), disturbances in consciousness (sedation), blood pressure increased and drug abuse. This guide describes the risks and explains how to minimise and manage them.





Transient dissociative states and perception disorders

()



Disturbances in consciousness





Blood pressure increased



۲

Please advise patients, their caregivers and close family to read the accompanying patient guide to support their understanding of the risks that may occur with Spravato® treatment.

What is Spravato[®]?

Spravato[®] is an N-methyl-D-aspartate (NMDA) receptor antagonist that, in combination with an SSRI or SNRI, is indicated for adults with treatment-resistant Major Depressive Disorder who have not responded to at least two different treatments with antidepressants in the current moderate-to-severe depressive episode.¹

Spravato® was shown to rapidly improve symptoms of depression that was maintained over the course of 1 year.¹

How does Spravato® work?

Esketamine is the S-enantiomer of racemic ketamine. It is a non-selective, non-competitive antagonist of the N-methyl-D-aspartate (NMDA) receptor, an ionotropic glutamate receptor (Figure 1).^{1, 2} Esketamine has approximately four-fold greater affinity for the NMDA receptor than arketamine (*R*-ketamine, the *R*-enantiomer of ketamine).³

۲

Through NMDA receptor antagonism, esketamine produces a transient increase in glutamate release leading to increases in α -amino-3-hydroxy-5-methyl-4-isoxazolepropionic acid receptor (AMPAR) stimulation and subsequently to increases in neurotrophic signalling, which may contribute to the restoration of synaptic function in brain regions involved with the regulation of mood and emotional behaviour. Restoration of dopaminergic neurotransmission in brain regions involved in the reward and motivation, and decreased stimulation of brain regions involved in anhedonia, may contribute to the rapid response.¹

Due to the way Spravato[®] works, it is associated with certain side effects, including the four identified risks discussed here: transient dissociative states and perception disorders (dissociation), disturbances in consciousness (sedation), blood pressure increased and drug abuse.¹



۲

Figure 1

۲

 $\label{eq:model} AMPA=\alpha-amino-3-hydroxy-5-methyl-4-isoxazole propionic acid; BDNF=brain-derived neurotrophic factor; GABA=\gamma-aminobutyric acid; NMDA-R=N-methyl-D-aspartate receptor$

How is Spravato[®] administered?

Spravato[®] is intended to be self-administered by the patient under the direct supervision of a healthcare professional.¹ Patients should be seated during Spravato[®] administration with their head tilted back at a 45-degree angle.¹ Please refer to the dosing and administration guide or to the SmPC for full details.

۲

The decision to prescribe Spravato[®] should be determined by a psychiatrist. Post-dose monitoring should be performed by a healthcare professional experienced in blood pressure monitoring.¹

Patients may experience nausea and vomiting after Spravato® administration. Therefore, patients should be advised not to eat for 2 hours prior and not to drink liquids for 30 minutes prior to administration. Patients should also be advised not to use any nasally administered corticosteroids or decongestants for 1 hour prior to Spravato® administration.¹

۲







۲

Healthcare facility requirements for Spravato® administration

- Blood pressure monitoring equipment at the dosing facility.
- When treating patients with clinically significant or unstable cardiovascular or respiratory conditions, appropriate resuscitation equipment and healthcare professionals with training in cardiopulmonary resuscitation should be available.¹

۲

Conditions that require specific consideration

- Only initiate treatment with Spravato[®] in patients with clinically significant or unstable cardiovascular or respiratory conditions if the benefit outweighs the risk. Examples of conditions which should be considered include, but are not limited to¹:
 - Significant pulmonary insufficiency, including chronic obstructive pulmonary disease
 - Sleep apnoea with morbid obesity (BMI ≥35)
 - Patients with uncontrolled brady- or tachyarrhythmias that lead to haemodynamic instability
 - Patients with a history of a myocardial infarction. These patients should be clinically stable and cardiac symptom free prior to administration

۲

- Haemodynamically significant valvular heart disease or heart failure (New York Heart Association, Class III-IV).

Monitoring patients before and after Spravato® administration

Pre-administration

- Discuss the possible side effects with the patient, but reassure them that symptoms should alleviate relatively quickly.
- Measure the patient's blood pressure and ensure it is in a safe range for Spravato[®] administration¹:
 - <140/90 mmHg for patients <65 years of age
 - <150/90 mmHg for patients ≥65 years of age.

If their blood pressure is elevated, rest and repeat the measurement.

- Confirm that the patient has avoided¹:
 - Eating for 2 hours
 - Using nasally administered corticosteroids or decongestants for 1 hour
 - Drinking liquids for 30 minutes.
- Consider the individual patient's benefit and risk before deciding whether to start Spravato[®] treatment.

۲

6

()

Post-administration

Patients should be monitored after Spravato[®] administration at each treatment session by a healthcare professional experienced in blood pressure monitoring:

- Measure the patient's blood pressure at around 40 minutes after administering the full dose of Spravato® (after administering the last nasal spray) and subsequently as clinically warranted.¹
 - If their blood pressure is elevated, continue to regularly measure it until it returns to acceptable levels.
- Closely monitor the patient for signs of dissociation, sedation and respiratory depression, and any other adverse events.¹ Most adverse events in clinical trials were transient and resolved by 1.5 hours post-dose.⁴
- Patients with clinically significant or unstable cardiovascular or respiratory conditions should be closely monitored.¹
- The most commonly observed adverse reactions in patients with treatment-resistant depression treated with Spravato[®] were dizziness (30%), nausea (27%), dissociation (26%), headache (24%), somnolence (18%), vertigo (18%), dysgeusia (17%), hypoaesthesia (11%), and vomiting (10%).¹
- Older adults (≥65 years of age) should be carefully monitored, as they may be at increased risk of falling when they start moving around after treatment.¹

Readiness-to-leave

- In a Phase 3 clinical trial, 93.2% of patients were ready to leave by 1.5 hours after taking Spravato[®], while all patients were ready to leave by 3 hours after taking Spravato[®].⁴
- Because of the possibility of sedation, dissociation and elevated blood pressure, patients must be monitored by a healthcare professional until they are considered clinically stable.¹
- The decision on the patient's readiness-to-leave should be made by the treating physician with the help of the 'Readiness-to-leave Checklist for Healthcare Professionals' provided with this guide.



()

Driving a motor vehicle or operating machinery needs complete mental alertness and motor co-ordination. Instruct patients not to drive or operate machinery until the day after Spravato[®] administration, following a restful sleep.





Transient dissociative states and perception disorders

What are transient dissociative states and perception disorders (dissociation)?

Dissociation describes a range of experiences.* It may include: transient distortions of time and space; change in perception of what people feel, see or hear (for example sounds appearing louder, colours appearing brighter); or the subjective feeling of being separated from the surrounding environment or one's own body.

Some have described the experience as observing things from outside of yourself. Dissociation is a non-psychotic state. Some people have described it as a positive or negative experience, but in clinical trials it was transient and usually reduced in intensity after repeated Spravato® dosing.¹

Æ

*Including amnesia, depersonalisation, derealisation and identity disturbance⁸

What is the evidence of dissociation with Spravato®?

- In Phase 3 clinical trials, 26% of patients experienced dissociation following Spravato® administration, as determined by adverse event reporting (Figure 2A).¹
- Most adverse events linked to dissociation were reported as mild or moderate in intensity, with <4% of events reported as severe across the Phase 3 studies.¹
- In a long-term trial, <1% of patients experienced dissociation severe enough that they discontinued Spravato[®].⁶
- Dissociation symptoms typically resolved by 1.5 hours post-dose (Figure 2B) and the severity tended to reduce over time with repeated treatments.¹

Across all Phase 3 trials of Spravato[®], 10 patients received medication for dissociation. No medications were used specifically for the management of dissociation, but rather for agitation or anxiety.⁷

In Phase 3 clinical trials, dissociation was also assessed using the Clinician-Administered Dissociative States Scale (CADSS) score⁸ to evaluate the severity and time course of any dissociative experiences.

- Dissociation severity, as assessed by CADSS score, tended to reduce over time with repeated Spravato[®] treatment (Figure 2C).⁵
- In a fixed-dose clinical trial, a slightly higher proportion of subjects in the 84-mg arm than in the 56-mg arm had increased dissociative symptoms.⁹

A post hoc analysis* showed that if a patient experienced dissociation in Week 1, they often experienced dissociation in Weeks 2–4. On the other hand, if a patient did not experience dissociation in Week 1, they often did not experience dissociation in Weeks 2–4.¹⁰

۲

Another post hoc analysis showed that changes in bodily sensations, general perceptual changes, and a general sense of being disconnected from one's own experience (depersonalisation) were the most common CADSS items in patients with clinician-reported adverse events of dissociation.¹¹

*From TRANSFORM-1 & -2 trials

12

()

Figure 2



C. Dissociation severity decreased over time⁵





It is important to review your patient's medical history to assess their prior risk of dissociation

۲

۲

Dissociation occurs more frequently in people with a history of ^{8,12}:

- Post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD)
- Childhood maltreatment or traumatic events
- Eating disorders
- Substance abuse (including alcohol)
- Alexithymia

- Anxiety and mood disorders
- Suicidality.

How to assess and manage dissociation

There is no specific guidance for the management of dissociation; however, healthcare professionals involved in the Spravato[®] clinical trials have found the following steps helpful:

- Pre-administration
 - Make the patient aware that they may experience dissociation but reassure them that symptoms should alleviate relatively quickly and may be a positive or negative experience.

 (\blacklozenge)

- Provide a safe, comfortable and calm environment for Spravato® administration; avoiding bright lights or too many concurrent stimuli may be helpful.
- It may be helpful to suggest the patient focuses on pleasant thoughts or listens to music during the session.
- Post-administration

()

- Identify dissociation if the patient reports symptoms or behaves in a way indicative of dissociation.
- Offer the patient support and assistance if they express concern while experiencing dissociation.
- Although most cases of dissociation in Spravato[®] clinical trials did not require pharmacological intervention,⁷ prescribing benzodiazepines, based on clinical judgement, may be helpful for patients experiencing a high degree of anxiety.
- In the event of visual dissociative experiences, it may help to advise the patient not to close their eyes.
- If the patient does experience dissociation, reassure them that their symptoms should alleviate relatively quickly.
- Observe the patient until they are ready to leave based on clinical judgement.



Driving a motor vehicle or operating machinery needs complete mental alertness and motor co-ordination. Instruct patients not to drive or operate machinery until the day after Spravato[®] administration, following a restful sleep.







Disturbances in consciousness (sedation)

What is the evidence of disturbances in consciousness with Spravato®?

The phrase 'disturbances in consciousness' includes a range of reported symptoms from sedation, altered state of consciousness, consciousness fluctuating, depressed level of consciousness and loss of consciousness, to lethargy, somnolence, sopor and stupor.¹³

- In clinical trials, 21.7% of patients experienced 'disturbances in consciousness' (a term that includes a range of symptoms*) following Spravato® administration as determined by adverse event reporting; 94.8% of these events were reported as mild or moderate.¹³
- Five patients discontinued the Phase 3 clinical trials⁺ due to 'disturbances in consciousness' events.^{±,13}
- Sedation typically started shortly after administration and peaked at 30 to 45 minutes after Spravato[®] administration.¹⁴
- Sedation generally resolved within 1.5 hours post-dose.¹

۲

• All cases of sedation resolved spontaneously; no respiratory depression was observed, and haemodynamic parameters remained within the normal range.¹

۲

*As defined by the MedDRA terms sedation, altered state of consciousness, consciousness fluctuating, depressed level of consciousness, loss of consciousness, lethargy, somnolence, sopor or stupor¹³

*All in the SUSTAIN-2 trial; no discontinuations due to 'disturbances in consciousness' events were observed in TRANSFORM-1, -2 or -3, or SUSTAIN-1

*As defined by the MedDRA terms sedation, somnolence or depressed level of consciousness

What is the evidence of sedation with Spravato®?

Sedation is a spectrum of symptoms ranging from mild drowsiness to loss of consciousness or anaesthesia.¹⁵

- Sedation was evaluated in detail during the Spravato[®] clinical trials using the Modified Observer's Assessment of Alertness and Sedation (MOAA/S) scale.¹⁴
 - The incidence of moderate or greater sedation, defined as MOAA/S score ≤3, was 8 to 15% in Spravato®-treated patients compared with 0.9 to 1.8% in placebo-treated patients (Figure 3).¹³
 - Sedation was mostly mild (MOAA/S score of 4) with only 11 patients treated with Spravato® experiencing severe sedation (MOAA/S score of 0 or 1).¹⁴
 - An important mechanism for some of the outlying sedation values may have been concomitant benzodiazepine use.¹⁴
 - A post hoc analysis* revealed that if a patient experienced somnolence (a symptom of sedation) in the first week, they often had somnolence in subsequent weeks. On the other hand, if a patient did not experience somnolence in Week 1, they often did not experience somnolence in Weeks 2–4.¹⁰



۲

Figure 3

۲



Incidence of sedation in Spravato[®] clinical trials¹³

Who is at risk of sedation?

۲

What increases the risk of sedation?

- Certain CNS depressant medications, such as benzodiazepines or opioids, can increase sedation. If your patient is receiving these medications, closely monitor for sedation following Spravato® administration.¹
- Alcohol can also increase sedation¹; therefore, advise your patients to avoid alcohol for a day before and after their Spravato[®] treatment.
- Patients with certain medical conditions may be at increased risk of sedation and need careful consideration before initiating Spravato[®] treatment. See the section entitled 'Conditions that require specific consideration' on page 6 for further details.



۲

Consider the individual patient's benefit and risk before deciding whether to start Spravato[®] treatment.

How to assess and manage sedation

- Pre-administration
 - Consider the patient's comedications and assess the individual patient's benefit and risk prior to initiation of Spravato® treatment.
 - Ensure close monitoring if any of their current medications may increase their risk of sedation.
 - Make the patient aware that they may experience sedation but reassure them that symptoms should alleviate relatively quickly.

(�)

- Provide a safe and secure environment for Spravato® administration.
- Post-administration
 - The patient should be monitored by a healthcare professional after Spravato® administration.

۲

- Potential sedation should be evaluated regularly by assessing the patient's response to stimuli.
- In the event of loss of consciousness, closely monitor the patient for respiratory depression and change in haemodynamic parameters (see Figure 4 for guidance).
- Observe the patient until they are ready to leave based on clinical judgement.

Figure 4: What to do in an emergency¹⁶



۲

()





Blood pressure increased

۲

What is the evidence of increased blood pressure with Spravato®?

- Spravato[®] administration can transiently raise blood pressure, lasting approximately 1–2 hours.¹
- In clinical trials, the frequency of markedly abnormal blood pressure elevations (systolic ≥40 mmHg increase; diastolic ≥25 mmHg increase) was higher in older adult patients (≥65 years of age) than in younger patients (Figure 5A).¹
- The incidence of increased systolic blood pressure (≥180 mmHg) was 3% and diastolic blood pressure (≥110 mmHg) was 4% in patients receiving Spravato® plus oral antidepressant.¹
- Less than 1% of patients in a long-term study discontinued Spravato[®] because of increased blood pressure.⁶
- Similar to dissociation, increase in blood pressure peaked at approximately 40 minutes post-administration (Figure 5B).⁴
- Treatment-emergent adverse events of increased blood pressure were transient, and mostly mild to moderate in severity.¹⁷

۲

Figure 5

۲



A. Frequency of markedly abnormal blood pressure

B. Change in blood pressure with Spravato^{®4}



• In patients receiving Spravato[®] plus oral antidepressant in clinical trials, increases in blood pressure over time were¹:

۲

- About 7 to 9 mmHg in systolic and 4 to 6 mmHg in diastolic blood pressure at 40 minutes post-dose
- About 2 to 5 mmHg in systolic and 1 to 3 mmHg in diastolic blood pressure at 1.5 hours post-dose.
- The range of maximum blood pressure readings for patients aged 18–64 treated with Spravato[®] is illustrated in Figure 6.¹⁷

Figure 6



۲

Mean maximum post-dose blood pressure*,17

*Pooled results from induction phase of 4-week double-blind studies of patients aged 18–64 years

۲

 (\blacklozenge)

Who is at risk of increased blood pressure?

Contraindications

۲

- Spravato[®] is contraindicated in patients for whom an increase in blood pressure or intracranial pressure poses a serious risk,¹ including:
 - Patients with aneurysmal vascular disease (including intracranial, thoracic or abdominal aorta, or peripheral arterial vessels)
 - Patients with history of intracerebral haemorrhage
 - Patients who have experienced a recent (within 6 weeks) cardiovascular event, including myocardial infarction.

It is important to obtain a full medical history for any patient who may receive Spravato[®] to evaluate the individual patient's benefit and risk for Spravato[®] and level of risk for increased blood pressure

- Patients with certain conditions may be at increased risk of blood pressure increase and need careful consideration before initiating Spravato® treatment.¹ See the section entitled 'Conditions that require specific consideration' on page 6 for further details.
- Blood pressure should be closely monitored when esketamine is used concomitantly with psychostimulants (e.g. amphetamines, methylphenidate, modafinil, armodafinil) or other medicinal products that may increase blood pressure (e.g. xanthine derivatives, ergometrine, thyroid hormones, vasopressin, or monoamine oxidase inhibitors, such as tranylcypromine, selegiline, phenelzine).¹

How to assess and monitor for increased blood pressure

- Pre-administration
 - Blood pressure should be measured before Spravato® administration.
 - If a patient's blood pressure is elevated (see Figure 7 for guidance values), please reconfirm their blood pressure.
 - If a patient's blood pressure is still elevated, consider lifestyle or pharmacological intervention to reduce blood pressure prior to starting Spravato® treatment.
 - Consider the patient's comedications and assess the individual patient's benefit and risk before deciding whether to delay Spravato® treatment.
- Post-administration
 - Blood pressure should be measured at around 40 minutes post-administration.
 - In case of elevation:
 - » Blood pressure should be rechecked (at least prior to discharge) to ensure it returns to a stable and acceptable level
 - » If needed (for example if blood pressure remains elevated for over 90 minutes), discuss the case with a specialist to consider the need for a short-acting antihypertensive medication with ongoing monitoring until blood pressure returns to stable and acceptable levels. Further information on managing hypertension can be found in the European Society of Cardiology (ESC) guidelines (www.escardio.org)

۲

» If a patient's blood pressure remains elevated, seek assistance from practitioners experienced in blood pressure management.

How to recognise a hypertensive episode

- Monitor for signs of a hypertensive episode, which can include¹⁸:
 - Headache
 - Chest pain
 - Shortness of breath
 - Vertigo
 - Nausea.
- Refer patients with symptoms of a hypertensive crisis for immediate emergency care.

۲

Figure 7. Monitoring and managing increased blood pressure



۲

Were other cardiovascular events observed with Spravato®?

۲

- Other cardiovascular adverse events were not considered clinically important identified risks.¹⁷
- In Phase 3 studies, the proportion of subjects with adverse events related to abnormal heart rate following Spravato® administration was low (0.2%).¹⁷

۲

 No clinically relevant effects on ECG parameters were observed in the Spravato[®] clinical development programme.¹⁷







Drug abuse

What is the evidence of drug abuse with Spravato®?

- Ketamine, the racemic mixture of arketamine and esketamine,¹ has a well-known potential for recreational abuse.¹⁹ Spravato[®] contains esketamine and may be subject to abuse and diversion.¹
- However, there were no reports of drug-seeking behaviour (e.g. requests for dosing changes and/or diversion of kits) during the Phase 3 clinical trials.²⁰

 (\blacklozenge)

- In real-world clinical practice, the risk of abuse with Spravato[®] is minimised by supervised administration.¹
- In a study of abuse potential conducted in recreational polydrug users (n=41), single doses of esketamine nasal spray (84 mg and 112 mg) and the positive control drug intravenous ketamine (0.5 mg/kg infused over 40 minutes), produced significantly greater scores than placebo on subjective ratings of "drug liking" and on other measures of subjective drug effects.¹
- Based on the PWC-20* results, there was no evidence from clinical trials to suggest a distinct withdrawal syndrome after cessation of treatment with Spravato[®].²⁰
- Data from all clinical trials with Spravato® were examined for the occurrence of adverse events related to the CNS and suggestive of drug abuse. The most common post-dose adverse events that could be associated with drug abuse were dizziness, somnolence and dissociation.²⁰
 - Symptoms were predominantly reported shortly after dosing with Spravato[®], were transient and self-limiting, and mild or moderate in intensity.²⁰

How to minimise the risk of drug abuse

۲

- The potential for abuse, misuse and diversion of Spravato[®] is minimised due to the administration taking place under the direct supervision of a healthcare professional.¹
- Spravato[®] is only used in the clinic under direct healthcare professional supervision; patients cannot use Spravato[®] alone at home.
 - In most European countries, Spravato[®] is a controlled drug with strict supply and procurement requirements.
 - The single-use nasal spray device contains minimal residual product once used and should be carefully disposed of according to local regulations.
- Spravato[®] is administered at low doses and infrequently (28–84 mg twice a week at its most frequent dosing phase, gradually decreasing to once every 2 weeks).¹ In contrast, non-prescription use of ketamine may range from 10–250 mg among recreational users, to 4000 mg among frequent abusers.²¹
- In a long-term clinical trial, 38% of patients taking Spravato® decreased dosing from weekly to once every 2 weeks; based on depression scores, some patients (24%) remained on weekly dosing, while others (38%) had variable dosing frequency.⁶

۲

• There were no reports of patients requesting an increase in dose or dosing frequency (a potential early indicator of drug-seeking behaviour) in the Spravato® clinical trials.²⁰

*Physician Withdrawal Checklist 20-Item

Who is at risk of drug abuse?

۲

• Carefully assess each patient's risk for abuse or misuse prior to prescribing Spravato[®]. Individuals with a history of drug abuse or dependence may be at greater risk for abuse and misuse of Spravato[®].¹

How to assess and monitor for signs of drug abuse

• Continually monitor patients receiving Spravato® for the development of behaviours or conditions of abuse or misuse, including drug-seeking behaviour.

۲

- Signs of abuse may include: attempted diversion (attempt to obtain more nasal sprays), drug-seeking behaviour (requesting more frequent or higher doses of Spravato® without medical need), and other symptoms of drug craving or withdrawal. If patients present with interstitial cystitis, that may be a sign that they are abusing street ketamine (no cases of Spravato®-related interstitial cystitis were observed in any of the clinical trials¹).
- If abuse is suspected, monitor symptoms and consult with local abuse support systems and specialists.

۲





How to report adverse events

• For additional information, please refer to the Summary of Product Characteristics (SmPC) or AM Mangion contact Medical Information by using one of the following methods:

۲

- Phone: 00356 2397 6000
- Email: pv@ammangion.com
- Search: www.ammangion.com.mt
- To report SUSPECTED ADVERSE REACTIONS, contact AM Mangion on the following:
 - Phone (24/7): 00356 2397 6333
 - Email: pv@ammangion.com

۲

- Address: AM Mangion Ltd, Mangion Building, N/S Off Valletta Road, Luqa, LQA 6000, MALTA
- Suspected Adverse Drug Reactions (side effects) or medication errors may be reported using the Medicines Authority ADR reporting form, which is available online at http://www.medicinesauthority.gov.mt/adrportal, and sent by post or email to:
 - P: Pharmacovigilance Section at Post-Licensing Directorate, Medicines Authority, Sir Temi Żammit Buildings, Malta Life Sciences Park, San Ġwann SĠN 3000
 - E: postlicensing.medicinesauthority@gov.mt

Risk minimisation timeline

()

Preparation

- Carefully evaluate eligible patients considering their comorbidities, comedications and individual risk for the four identified risks
- Discuss the four identified risks with the patient and explain the symptoms they may experience
- Advise the patient to avoid:
 - Eating for 2 hours
 - Using a nasally administered corticosteroid or decongestant for 1 hour
 - Drinking liquids for 30 mins
- Instruct the patient to plan to travel home by public transport or arrange for someone else to drive them home after taking Spravato[®]

۲

Pre-administration

- Provide a safe and calm environment for Spravato[®] administration
- Measure blood pressure and ensure it is within acceptable range
- Ensure the patient knows how to self-administer Spravato[®]
- Confirm that, prior to Spravato[®] administration, the patient has avoided:
 - Eating for 2 hours
 - Using a nasally administered corticosteroid or decongestant for 1 hour

۲

- Drinking liquids for 30 mins

Post-administration

- Regularly monitor the patient for adverse events
- Measure the patient's blood pressure at around 40 minutes post-dose and subsequently as clinically warranted

۲

Readiness to leave

- Use the accompanying readiness-to-leave checklist to determine whether the patient is ready to leave
- Confirm blood pressure is at acceptable levels
- Ensure the patient is clinically stable before they go home
- Check how the patient is feeling before they leave
- Ensure the patient has planned to travel home by public transport or has arranged for someone else to drive them home



Driving a motor vehicle or operating machinery needs complete mental alertness and motor co-ordination. Instruct patients not to drive or operate machinery until the day after Spravato[®] administration, following a restful sleep.

۲

۲

References

- Janssen Cilag International NV. Spravato® (esketamine) Summary of Product Characteristics. DRAFT Feb 2019. Duman RS. F1000Research 2018; 7:F1000 Faculty Rev-659. 1. 2
- 3.
- Molero P, et al. CNS Drugs 2018; 32:411–420. Popova V, et al. Am J Psychiatry 2019; 176:428–438. 4.
- 5.
- Popova V, et al. Am J Psychiatry 2019; 176:428–438. Popova V, et al. Am J Psychiatry 2019; 176:428–438 (Supplementary info) Wajs E, et al. Poster T67. American Society of Clinical Psychopharmacology (ASCP) 2018 Annual Meeting. Miami Beach, USA. 31 May 2018. 6.
- Janssen Cilag International NV. Data on file. RF-82796. 7.
- 8. Bremner JD, et al. J Trauma Stress 1998; 11:125–136.
- Fedgchin M, et al. Int J Neuropsychopharmacol 2019; 22:616–630 9 10. Williamson D, et al. Poster 236. Psych Congress 2018. Orlando, USA.
- 25–28 October 2018.
- Williamson D, et al. Poster. The International Society for CNS Clinical Trials and Methodology (ISCTM) 2019 Annual Scientific Meeting. Washington, D.C., USA. 20 February 2019.
 Marcan C L et al. Addictional Society for CNS Clinical Trials 20. Janssen Clinical International NV. Data on fil Marcan C L et al. Addiction 2009; 104/37-
- 12. Maaranen P, et al. Aust N Z J Psychiatry 2005; 39:387–394.

- 13. Janssen Cilag International NV. Data on file. RF-82799.
- Janssen Chag international NV. Data on file. Kr-62799. Janssen Esketamine FDA advisory committee presentation 2018. Available from: https://www.fda.gov/downloads/ AdvisoryCommittees/Committees/Meeting/Materials/Drugs/ PsychopharmacologicDrugsAdvisoryCommittee/UCM631430.pdf. Accessed October 2019. 14.
- Accessed October 2019.
 15. American society of Anesthesiologists. Continuum of depth of sedation: definition of general anesthesia and levels of sedation/analgesia 2014.
 Available from: https://www.asahq.org/standards-and-guidelines/ continuum-of-depth-of-sedation-definition-of-general-anesthesia-and-levels-of-sedationanalges. Accessed October 2019.
 16. Perkins GD, et al. Resuscitation 2015; 95:81–99.
 17. Defender and Deuter DO 2014 Accession of the American.

۲

- Doherty T, et al. Poster P8-031. Annual Meeting of the American Psychiatric Association (APA) 2019. San Francisco, USA. 21 May 2019.
 Salkic S, et al. Mater Sociomed 2014; 26:12–16.

- 20. Janssen Cilag International NV. Data on file. RF-76613.
- 21. Morgan CJ, et al. Addiction 2009; 104:77-87.





Artwork from Reflections Art in Health, a user-led charity that promotes positive mental health through the creative arts

۲